
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

V.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS

EASTERN DIVISION

)
) No.

)
)

EDSON RESENDEZ, aka "Savage," and ) Violation: Title 18, United States
MAVERICK CEIA, aka "G Reckless" ) Code, Sections 37t,2LI9,

The SPECIAL JULY 2021 GRA.ND JURY charges:

1. Beginning no later than on or about September IL,2020, and continuing

until on or about September 17, 2020, in Cook County, in the Northern District of

Illinois, Eastern Division, and elsewhere,

EDSON RESENDEZ, aka "Savage," and
MAVERICK CEIA, aka "G Reckless,"

defendants herein, d"id conspire with each other, and with others known and unknown

to the Grand Jury, to take a motor vehicle from the presence of another person by

force and violence and by intimidation, with intent to cause death and serious bodily

harm, which vehicle had been transported, shipped, and received in interstate

commerce, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2119.

2. It was part of the consp tracythat defendants EDSON RESEND EZ and.

MAVERICK CELA, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, agreed to use
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firearms in order to take motor vehicles from the presence of another person by force

and violence and by intimidation.

3. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant EDSON

RESENDEZ, andothers known and unknown to the Grand Jury, obtained, possessed,

and brandished a firearm in connection with the taking of a motor vehicle.

4. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendants EDSON

RESENDEZ and MAVERICK CELA, and others known and unknown to the Grand

Jury, did conceal and hid.e, and cause to be concealed and hidden, the purposes of acts

done in furtherance of the conspiracy.

OVERT ACTS

5. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to accomplish the objectives of the

conspiracy, defendants committed one or more overt acts in the Northern District of

Illinois, and elsewhere, which overt acts included but were not limited to the

following:

(a) On or before September 17,2020, defendant EDSON RESENDEZ obtained

a firearm;

G) On or about September 11, 2020, in Morton Grove, Illinois, defendants

EDSON RESENDEZ and MAVERICK CELA and others known and

unknown to the Grand Jury took Victim A's zLt|Chevrolet Sonic from the

person and presence of Victim A by force, violence, and intimidation;



(c) On or about September 12, 2020, defendants EDSON RESENDEZ an.d

MAVERICK CELA, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury,

obtained a license plate from a stolen 2073 Chevy and affi.xed it to the stolen

2014 Chevy Sonic;

(d) On or about September 13, 2020, defendants EDSON RESENDEZ an.d

MAVERICK CEI,A, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury,

drove the stolen 2Ot4 Chevy Sonic to Skokie, Illinois to steal another

vehicle;

(e) On or about September 73,2020, in Skokie, defendant MAVERICK CELA

drove the stolen 2OI4 Chevy Sonic in front of the driveway containing

Victim B's 20L4 Lexus GS350, and kept watch while defendant EDMOND

RESENDEZ approached Victim B;

(0 On or about September 73,2020, in Skokie, defendant EDSON RESENDEZ

brandished a firearm at Victim B;

(g) On or about September 13, 2020, in Skokie, defendants EDSON

RESENDEZ and MAVERICK CELA, and others known and unknown to

the Grand Jury, took Victim B's 20t4 Lexus GS350, from the person and

presence of Victim B by force, violence, and intimidation;

(h) On or about September 14,2020, defendant MAVERICK CEIA, and others

known and unknown to the Grand J*y, disposed of the stolen 2014 Chevy



Sonic by lighting it on fi.re on the 6200 block of North Lincoln Avenue, in

Chicago, Illinois;

(i) On or about September 16, 2020, in Chicago, defendants EDSON

RESENDEZ and MAVERICK CELA, and others known and unknown to

the Grand Jury, disposed of the stolen 2014 Lexus GS350 on the 4800 block

of South Hermitage Avenue, in Chicago, Illinois;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.
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COUNT TWO

The SPECIAL JULY 2021 GRAND JURY further charges:

On or about September t1.,2O2O, at Morton Grove, in the Northern District of

Illinois, Eastern Division,

EDSON RESENDEZ, aka "Savage," and
MAVERICK CEI,A, aka "G Reckless,"

defendants herein, with intent to cause death and serious bodily harm, took a motor

vehicle, namely a 2014 Chevrolet Sonic, that had been transported, shipped, and

received in interstate and foreign commerce, from the person and presence of Victim

A, by force, violence and intimidation;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2\Lg and 2.
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COUNT THREE

The SPECIAL JULY 2021GRAND JURY further charges:

On or about September 13,2020, at Skokie, in the Northern District of Illinois,

Eastern Divisi.on,

EDSON RESENDEZ, aka "Savage," and
MAVERICK CEI"A, aka "G Reckless,"

defendants herein, with intent to cause death and serious bodily harm, took a motor

vehicle, namely a 2074 Lexus GS350, that had been transported, shipped, and

received in interstate and foreign commerce, from the person and presence of Victim

A, by force, violence and intimidation;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2119 and 2.



COUNT FOUR

The SPECIAL JULY 2O2L GRAND JURY further charges:

' On or about Septembe r 73,2020, at Skokie, in the Northern District of Illinois,

Eastern Division,

EDSON RESEND EZ, aka "S avage,"

defend.ant herein, did use, carry and brand.ish a firearm, d.uring and in relation to a

crime of violence for which he may be prosecuted in a court of the United States,

namely, carjacking, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2119, as

charged in Count Three of this Indictment;

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 924(c)(1)(A).

A TRUE BILL:

FOREPERSON

signed by Sarah Streicker on behalf of the
I]NITED STATES ATTORNEY
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